

Reference Guide

International Telecommunications Carriers and Regulatory Authorities

North, Central and South America

Table of Contents

ANTIGUA	3	HAITI	9
ARGENTINA	3	HONDURAS	9
BAHAMAS	3	JAMAICA	9
BARBADOS	3	MEXICO	9
BELIZE	4	NICARAGUA	10
BOLIVIA	4	PANAMA	10
BRAZIL	4	PARAGUAY	11
CANADA	5	PERU	11
CHILE	6	PHILIPPINES	11
COLOMBIA	7	SAINT VINCENT-THE GRENADINES	11
CUBA	7	SURINAME	11
ECUADOR	7	TRINIDAD & TOBAGO	12
EL SALVADOR	8	UNITED STATES	12
GRENADA	8	URUGUAY	13
GUATEMALA	8	VENEZUELA	13
GUYANA	8		

ANTIGUA

MINISTRY OF PUBLIC WORKS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Telecommunications Officer, St. John's Street
St. John's, ANTIGUA
809-462-4772; fax: 809-462-4622



ARGENTINA

COMISION NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Sarmiento 151, Piso 4
Buenos Aires, 1000 ARGENTINA
+54 1 318 9410; fax: +54 1 318 9432
www.cnc.gov.ar



Contact(s):

Dr. Germán Luis Kammerath, Secretario de Comunicaciones

INSTITUTO ARGENTINO DE NORMALIZACION (IRAM)

(1098) Buenos Aires – Argentina
+54 1 381 9754/9785; fax: +54 1 383-8463
www.iram.com.ar



BAHAMAS

MINISTRY OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS

The Permanent Secretary
P.O. Box N 8347
Nassau, BAHAMAS
809-322-6317; fax: 809-322-7249



Contact(s):

Roosevelt Butler, Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Consumer Affairs

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC ENTERPRISES

Office of the Deputy Prime Minister
P.O. Box N-3217
Nassau, BAHAMAS
+1 242 356 4400; fax: +1 242 356 7444

Contact(s):

Roosevelt Butler, Permanent Secretary

BARBADOS

MINISTRY OF PUBLIC WORKS, COMMUNICATIONS AND TRANSPORTATION

Herbert House, Fontabelle, St. Michael
Bridgetown, BARBADOS
809-426-2669; fax: 809-431-0121



Contact(s):

Harcourt Williams, Permanent Secretary for Telecommunications Division

BELIZE

MINISTRY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS

Independence Hill
Belmopan, BELIZE
www.belize.gov.bz



BELIZE TELECOMMUNICATIONS LIMITED

St. Thomas Street
PO Box 603
BELIZE CITY
+501 2 38252; fax: +501 2 38127

Contact(s):

Dean Molina, Carrier Relations Officer

BOLIVIA

DIRECCION GENERAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Cajon Postal 4475, Calle Mercado, No. 1115, Edif. Guerrero, 5
La Paz, BOLIVIA
+591 2 369 674; fax: +591 2 369 674 / 359 840



Contact(s):

Hector Guzman Hinojasa, Director-General of Telecommunications
Willy Vargas Vacaflor, Minister of Transportation and Communications
Carlos Zamorano Jordan, Subsecretary of Communication

SUPERINTENDENCIA DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Edif. Cosmos, 6 Piso
La Paz, BOLIVIA
+591 2 369 674; fax: +591 2 369 674

Contact(s):

Carlos Saravia Durnick, Superintendente

BRAZIL

MINISTERIO DAS COMUNICACOES

Esplanada dos Ministérios
Bloco "R", 8º andar
70044-900 - BRASILIA, DF, BRAZIL
+55 61 3116201 / 2259381; fax: +55 61 2263980
www.mc.gov.br



Contact(s):

Sérgio Motta

DEPARTAMENTO NACIONAL DE SERVICOS PRIVADOS

Secretaria Nacional das Comunicacoes, Ministerio da Infra-Estrutura, Bloco R, Ed. Anexo, 3§ Andar
Brasilia, DF, 70044 BRAZIL
+55 61 218 6811; fax: +55 61 223 4992

Contact(s):

Roberto Blois, Director

AGÊNCIA NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICAÇÕES (ANATEL)

SAS, Quadra 6
Bloco "H" - 3º Andar
70313-900 BRASÍLIA, DF, BRAZIL
+55 61 312 2003 / 2004; fax +55 61 312 2201
www.mc.gov.br/anatel/default.htm

Contact(s):

Renato Navarro Guerreiro, President
João Eduardo Cerdeira de Santana
Joel Rauber, Secretário Nacional das Comunicações

ASSOCIAÇÃO BRASILEIRA DE NORMAS TÉCNICAS (ABNT)



Avenida Treze de Maio, 13, 27º andar - Centro
CEP: 20003 - 900 - Rio de Janeiro - RJ BRAZIL
+55 21 210 3122; fax: +55 21 220 1762
www.abnt.org.br/index2.htm

CANADA

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND REGULATORY & APPEALS COMMISSION

134 Kent Street, Suite 501, P.O. Box 577
Charlottetown, PE C1A 7L1 CANADA
902-892-3501; fax: 902-566-4076
www.irac.pe.ca



Contact(s):

Wayne D. Cheverie, Q.C.: Chair & Chief Executive Officer
Diane Gaudet, Commissioner Administrator
Ginger Breedon, Vice-Chair

ONTARIO TELEPHONE SERVICE COMMISSION

3625 Dufferin Street, Suite 200
Downsview, ON M3K 1Z2 CANADA
416-235-4950; fax: 416-326-3958

Contact(s):

Margot Priest, Chairman

NOVA SCOTIA UTILITY AND REVIEW BOARD

1601 Lower Water Street, Postal Unit M, Suite 300, P.O. Box 1692
Halifax, NS B3J 3S3 CANADA
902-424-4448; fax: 902-424-3919

Contact(s):

M. H. Robertson, Chairman

CANADIAN RADIO-TELEVISION AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

1 Promenade du Portage, Terrasses de la Chaudière, Immeuble Central Hull
Ottawa, ON K1A 0N2 CANADA
819-997-0313; fax: 819-953-0795
www.crtc.gc.ca

Contact(s):

Françoise Bertrand, Chairperson, Commissioner
David Colville, Vice-Chairman, Telecommunications
Garth Dawley, Commissioner
Yves Dupras, Commissioner
Sally Reukauf Warren, Commissioner
Laura M. Talbot-Allan, Secretary General
Andrew Cardozo, Commissioner
David McKendry, Commissioner
Joan Pennefather, Commissioner
Andrée P. Wylie, Commissioner
Margot Priest, Chairman
Mark K. Jaccard, Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS (INDUSTRY CANADA)

300 Slater Street
Ottawa, ON K1A 0C8 CANADA
613-990-4817; fax: 613-952-1231
<http://strategis.ic.gc.ca/SSG/sf01347e.html>



QUEBEC TELECOMMUNICATIONS BOARD

3175 Chemin des Quatre-Bourgeois
Saint-Foy, PQ G1W 2K7 CANADA
418-643-5560; fax: 418-643-2960

Contact(s):
Richard Lebrie, Vice Chairman

NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

P.O. Box 9188
St. John's, NF A1A 2X9 CANADA
709-726-1133; fax: 709-726-9604

Contact(s):
Reginald Good, Chairman

BRITISH COLUMBIA UTILITIES COMMISSION

900 Howe Street, 6th Floor
Vancouver, BC V6Z 2N3 CANADA
604-660-4700; fax: 604-660-1102

Contact(s):
Reginald Good, Chairman

STANDARDS COUNCIL OF CANADA (SCC)

45 O'Connor Street, Suite 1200
OTTAWA ON K1P 6N7 CANADA
613-238-3222; fax: 613-995-4564
www.scc.ca



CANADIAN STANDARDS ASSOCIATION (CSA)

Etobicoke (Toronto)
178 Rexdale Boulevard
Etobicoke (Toronto), ONTARIO CANADA M9W 1R3
416-747-4000; fax: 416-747-2675
www.csa-international.org/welcome.html



CHILE

MINISTERIO DE TRANSPORTES Y TELECOMUNICACIONES

Amunátegui 139
Clasificador 120, Correo 21
+56 2 6726503; fax: +56 2 6995138

Contact(s):
Claudio Hohmann Barrientos, Ministro de Transportes y Telecomunicaciones
Juanita Gana Quiroz, Subsecretario de Telecomunicaciones

INSTITUTO NACIONAL DE NORMALIZACION (INN)

Matías Cousiño 64, 5º piso, Santiago 1, Chile
+562 441 0330; fax: +562 441 0427
www.inn.cl



COLOMBIA

MINISTERIO DE COMUNICACIONES

Edificio Murillo Toro, Carreras 7 y 8, Calle 13
Bogota, DE 1, COLOMBIA
+57 1 241 5532; fax: +57 1 284 9090
www.colomsat.net.co/mincom

Contact(s):

Jorge Hernan Duque Botero, Secretary General for Ministry of Communications
Alberto Casas Santamaria, Minister of Communication
Jose Hernandez Galindo, Vice Minister of Communication
Jos, Humberto Pulido Sierra, Manager for the International Section

COMISION DE REGULACION DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

www.colomsat.net.co/mincom

INSTITUTO COLOMBIANO DE NORMAS TÉCNICAS Y CERTIFICACIÓN (ICONTEC)

Carrera 37 52-95
Santafé de Bogotá D.C
+57 1 315 0377, fax +57 1 222 1435
www.icontec.org.co



CUBA

DIRECCION DE TELEFONIA

Ministerio de Comunicaciones
Plaza de la Revolución "José Martí"
LA HABANA CP 10600 CUBA
+53 7 335 193; fax: +53 7 335 190

Contact(s):

Filiberto Au Kim, Director de Telefonía
Manuel Castillo Rabassa, Minister of Communications
Mercedes Carracedo Soto, First Deputy Minister of Communications

MINISTERIO DE COMUNICACIONES

Plaza de la Revolución "José Martí"
LA HABANA CP 10600 CUBA
+53 7 818 573; fax: +53 7 335 253

Contact(s):

Silvano Colás Sánchez, Ministro de Comunicaciones
Orlando Inerarity Zaporta, Viceministro

ECUADOR

INSTITUTO ECUATORIANO DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Casilla Postal 3066
Quito, ECUADOR
+593 2 560 700; fax: +593 2 568 000

Contact(s):

I. Carrasco, Minister of Public Works and Communications
Sergio Flores Macias, Director-General
Jorge Lanás Silva, Deputy Secretary of Public Works and Communications

ASETA

La Pradera No. 510 Y San Salvador
Casilla Postal: 171106042
Quito - ECUADOR
Tel. : (593)2-563812; Fax : (593)2-562499
www.aseta.org.ec



EL SALVADOR

ADMINISTRACION NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Centro de Gobierno, San Salvador, EL SALVADOR
+503 717067; fax: +503 215456

Contact(s):

Joaquin Cerna Flores, Director-General
Edgar Mauricio Moran, Chief of Services Division
SaEl Suster Ramirez, President



GRENADA

MINISTRY OF WORKS, COMMUNICATIONS, PUBLIC UTILITIES, AND WOMEN'S AFFAIRS

Vice President of Marketing
Ministry of Works, Communications, Public Utilities, and Women's Affairs
Young Street
St. George's, GRENADA
809-440-2271; fax: 809-440-4122



MINISTRY OF COMMUNICATIONS AND WORKS

CALIZIGNY
St. George's, GRENADA
+1 473 4402181; fax: +1 473 4404122

Contact(s):

Mr. Joseph Charter, Permanent Secretary

GUATEMALA

MINISTERIO DE COMUNICACIONES, TRANSPORTES Y OBRAS PUBLICAS

30 Nivel Palacio Nacional
Ciudad de Guatemala, GUATEMALA
+502 2 81613

Contact(s):

Mario R. Altan Barillas, International Radio
Fritz Garcia Gallout, Minister

SUPERINTENDENCIA DE TELECOMUNICACIONES DE GUATEMALA

14 Calle 3-51, Zona 10
Edificio Murano Center, Nivel 16
Cuidad De Guatemala 01010
GUATEMALA
+502 366 5880; fax: +502 366 5890

Contact(s):

Sr. Mario Roberto Paz, Superintendant

GUYANA

THE DIRECTOR OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS

68 Hadfield Street, P.O. Box 12174
Greater Georgetown, GUYANA
+592 2 63976; fax: +592 2 67661



Contact(s):

Keith Griffith

HAITI

CONSEIL NATIONAL DES TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Boîte Postale 2002
Port-au-Prince, HAITI
+509 1 220 300

Contact(s):

Samuel Dubois, Director-General
Frantz Verella, Minister of Public Works, Transport and Communications

MINISTÈRE DES TRAVAUX PUBLICS, TRANSPORTS ET COMMUNICATION

Palais des Ministères
Port-au-Prince, HAITI
+22 0300
www.haitifocus.com/work_f.html

Contact(s):

Jacques Dorcéa, Minister



HONDURAS

EMPRESA HONDUREÑA DE TELECOMUNICACIONES (HONDUTEL)

Dirección de Relaciones
Colonia Los Almendros
Apartado Postal 1794
TEGUCIGALPA, M.D.C. HONDURAS
+504 385 038; fax: +504 384 206
www.hondutel.hn

Contact(s):

Arturo Morales Fúnez, Gerente General de HONDUTEL
Ricardo Flores, Director de Relaciones de HONDUTEL

COMISIÓN NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES (CONATEL)

Apartado Postal 15012
Tegucigalpa, HONDURAS
+504 234-8600; fax: +504 234-8611
www.conatel.hn/



JAMAICA

MINISTRY OF COMMERCE AND TECHNOLOGY

36 Trafalgar Road
Kingston, JAMAICA
+876 929 8990 - 9; fax: +876 960 1623

Contact(s):

Ransford Smith, Permanent Secretary
Roy Humes, Chief Telecommunications Engineer



MEXICO

DIRECCION GENERAL DE POLITICAS Y NORMAS DE COMUNICACIONES

Torre Central de Telecomunicaciones, L zaro C rdenas 567, Anexo "B," Piso 2
Mexico, DF, 03028 MEXICO
+52 5 682 6170; fax: +52 5 682 8698

Contact(s):

Andrés Caso Lombardo, Secretary of Communications and Transportation
Alejandro Lopez Toledo, Director-General for Policies and Standards
Carlos Mier y Teran, Subsecretary of Communications and Transportation
Carlos Lara Sumano, Director-General of Telecommunications



COMISIÓN FEDERAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Coordinación General de Asuntos Internacionales
Bosque de Radiatas No. 44, 4° piso
Colonia Bosques de las Lomas
05120 MEXICO, D.F.
+52 5 261 4203; fax: +52 5 261 4055
www.cofetel.gob.mx/



Contact(s):

Salma Jalife Villalón, Director

ASOCIACIÓN NACIONAL DE NORMALIZACIÓN Y CERTIFICACIÓN DEL SECTOR ELÉCTRICO (ANCE)

Av. Puente de Tecamachalco No.6,
Edificio Anexo,
Col. Fuentes de Tecamachalco,
Naucalpan de Juárez,
Edo. de MÉXICO, c.p.53950
+52 520 9026 / 8928 / 9158; fax: +52 520-8800
<http://rtn.net.mx/ance>



NICARAGUA

INSTITUTO NICARAGUENSE DE TELECOMUNICACIONES Y CORREO

Eliso Duarte-Villa Panama, Apartado Postal 232
Managua, NICARAGUA
+505 2 71134 / 74092 / 71065; fax: +505 67 8420



Contact(s):

Pablo Vijil Ycaza, Minister

INSTITUTO NICARAGUENSE DE TELECOMUNICACIONES Y CORREOS

Km 9, Carretera Norte,
Entrada Residencial Las Mercedes
Mano derecha
Apartado 232
Mangua, NICARAGUA
+505 263 2171; fax: +505 263 3192

Contact(s):

Mario Montenegro Castillo, Director General
Hjalmar Aystas Toruño, Director de Telecomunicaciones

PANAMA

INSTITUTO NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Gerencia Ejecutiva Internacional, Apartado Postal 659
Panama 9A, PANAMA
+507 235 131; fax: +507 230 934



Contact(s):

Alex A. Arroyo, Gerente Ejecutivo de Desarrollo
Edilbrando Denis Cerrud, Gerente Ejecutivo Internacional
Justo Perez Cuca, Gerente Ejecutivo de Operaciones
Francisco Denis Duran, Gerente General
Horacio A. Robles, Subgerente General
Cristobal Samudio, Gerente Ejecutivo Administrativo

PARAGUAY

ADMINISTRACIÓN NACIONAL DE TELECOMUNICACIONES

Alberdi Y Oliva - 40 Piso
Asuncion, PARAGUAY
+595 21 27273; fax: +595 21 210236
www.antelco.com.py



Contact(s):

Orlando Pereira, Secretary General

PERU

MINISTERIO DE TRANSPORTES, COMUNICACIONES, VIVIENDA Y CONSTRUCCION (MTC)

Dirección General de Telecomunicaciones, Avenue 28 de Julio, No. 800
Lima 1, PERU
+51 1 433 0425; fax: +51 1 433 9378
www.mtc.gob.pe/



Contact(s):

Antonio Paucar Carbajal, Minister
Miguel Osaki Suemitsu, Director-General

OSIPTEL-GERENCIA DE COMUNICACIÓN CORPORATIVA

Calle de La Prosa 136
Lima 41 PERU
+51 1 2251313; fax: +51 1 4751816
www.osiptel.gob.pe/



PHILIPPINES

Department of Transport and Communications NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

4th Floor NTC Building
BIR Road, East Triangle
Diliman, Quezon City, PHILIPPINES
+63 2 924 4046 / 4006; fax: +63 2 921 7128 / 924 4046



Contact(s):

Jesus B. Garcia, Secretary

SAINT VINCENT-THE GRENADINES

MINISTRY OF COMMUNICATIONS, WORKS AND LABOUR

Kingstown, SAINT VINCENT-THE GRENADINES
809 457 2031; fax: 809 456 2168



Contact(s):

Jeremiah Scott, Minister
Jeremiah Scott, Minister of Communications and Works
Donnie De Freitas, Telecommunications Officer
Claudia White, Permanent Secretary
Judith Leigertwood, Permanent Secretary

SURINAME

TELECOMMUNICATIEBEDRIJF SURINAME

Heiligenweg, 1, P.O. Box 1839
Paramaribo, SURINAME
+597 473 944; fax: +597 477 800



Contact(s):

Dick C. de Bie, Minister
Leonard C. Johanns, Managing Director

TRINIDAD & TOBAGO

OFFICE OF THE PRIME MINISTER

Telecommunications Division, 17A Abercromby Street
Port of Spain, TRINIDAD & TOBAGO
+868 623 8060; fax: +868 624 3869



Contact(s):

Gasleo Panday, Prime Minister
R. Winston Ragbir, Director of Telecommunications Division

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO BUREAU OF STANDARDS

P.O Box 467

Port of Spain

Lot 1 Century Drive, Trincity Industrial Estate

Macoya, Tunapuna

Trinidad and Tobago

Location

868 662 8827 / 868 662 4241/4242; fax: 868 663 4335

www.opus.co.tt/ttbs



UNITED STATES

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION (FCC) COMMON CARRIER BUREAU

445 12th Street SW

Washington, DC 20554

202 418 1500, fax: 202 418 2825

www.fcc.gov



OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

200 Constitution Avenue

Washington, D.C. 20210

202-693-1999

www.osha.gov



UNDERWRITER'S LABORATORIES INC.

333 Pfingsten Road

Northbrook, IL 60062-2096

847 272 8800; fax: 847-272-8129

www.ul.com



TUV RHINELAND OF NORTH AMERICA, INC.

12 Commerce Road

Newtown, CT 06470

203-426-0888; fax: 203-270-8883

www.us.tuv.com/welcome.html



NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF STANDARDS AND TECHNOLOGY (NIST) DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE



100 Bureau Drive

Gaithersburg, MD 20899-0001

301-975-NIST; TTY 301-975-8295

www.nist.gov

AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE (ANSI)

11 West 42nd Street

New York, New York 10036

212-642-4900; fax: 212-398-0023

www.ansi.org



BELL ATLANTIC CORPORATION 

1095 Avenue of the Americas
New York, New York 10036
212-395-2121 / 800-621-9900; fax:
www.bell-atl.com

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS (Bell-Atlantic & GTE merger)



<http://www.verizon.com>

SOUTHWESTERN BELL 

www.swbell.com

QWEST (formerly US WEST) Corporate Headquarters


555 17th Street
Denver, CO 80202
+(303) 992-1400, (800) 899-7780, fax: (303) 992-1724
www.qwest.com



AMERITECH

www.ameritech.com



PACIFIC BELL 

www.pacbell.com

SBC COMMUNICATIONS

www.sbc.com



AMERICAN TELEPHONE AND TELEGRAPH (AT&T)

www.att.com



MCI/WORLDCOM

www.wcom.com



SPRINT

2330 Shawnee Mission Parkway
Westwood, KS 66205
913-624-3000
www.sprint.com



URUGUAY

DIRECCIÓN NACIONAL DE COMUNICACIONES (DNC)

Bulevar Artigas, Casilla de Correo 927
Código Postal: 11600
Montevideo, URUGUAY
+598 2 707 3662; fax: +598 2 707 3591



Contact(s):

Raul Iturria, Minister

INSTITUTO URUGUAYO DE NORMAS TÉCNICAS

Plaza Independencia 812 Piso 2
Montevideo - Uruguay
Tel: +598 2 9012048; fax: +598 2 9021681
www.unit.org.uy



VENEZUELA

MINISTERIO DE TRANSPORTES Y COMUNICACIONES

Apartado No. 17-174
Caracas, 1020 VENEZUELA



+58 2 924 191; fax: +58 2 926 379

Contact(s):

Moisés Orozco Graterol, Minister

José Luis Avilez Neiro, Director General